
       
      PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL     
      WORKSHOP 
      TUESDAY, JULY 5, 2011 
      PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
                       
MINUTES OF THE PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP held on July 5, 2011, in 
the CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS located at 201 SOUTH CORTEZ STREET, 
Prescott, Arizona 
 

  CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Mayor Kuykendall called the Workshop to order at 3:01 p.m.  
 

 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Councilman Lamerson 
 

Councilman Lamerson led the Council and audience in the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

 
 INVOCATION Church of the Nazarene 

 
 None was given. 
 

  ROLL CALL:    
 
  Present:      Absent:
  

Mayor Kuykendall     Councilman Hanna* 
Councilman Blair     Councilwoman Linn** 
Councilman Hanna    
Councilman Lamerson   
Councilwoman Lopas 
Councilwoman Suttles 
 
* excused 

 ** available via phone 
 
I. RECOGNITIONS 
 

A. Introduction of new businesses 
 

Dyan Jones from the Prescott Chamber of Commerce introduced the 
following businesses, who each briefly told of their business: 
 

 Accurate Building Maintenance  
 Yavapai Deals 



Prescott City Council  
Workshop – July 5, 2011                                                                                      Page 2 
 

   
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

A. Representative of Prescott Creeks re Granite Creek Cleanup. 
 

Ann-Marie Benz, Prescott Creeks, gave a recap of the 2011 Cleanup.  
She noted that the cleanup had been going on for more than 20 years and 
Prescott Creeks had been running it for the past 5 years.  

 
She thanked the City of Prescott for their help and noted that 508 people 
came out to help from the community to pick up 10 tons of trash from the 
creeks, lakes and along the trails.   

 
She noted that in five years, 1,715 people had retrieved 27.37 tons of 
trash. She said that the City recycled 100 plus pounds of metal and pulled 
out tires. Three tons of garbage was up-cycled into art. 

 
She said that they currently had a CALL FOR ARTISTS to use some of 
the trash and bring it back as art pieces for an art show and auction on 
September 18, 2011 from 4:00 – 7:00 p.m. at Granite Dells Resort. The 
event cost would be $35 and would help support the Granite Creek 
Cleanup. She said that there would be food, drinks and music.  
 
She noted that the annual Granite Creek Cleanup event for next year 
would be April 21, 2012, 9:00 a.m. at Granite Creek Park.  

  
B. Carol Friedman re Symphony Guild Update. 

 
Ms. Friedman was not present 

 
C. James Ware re use of Watson Lake Park by the Prescott Antique Auto 

Club. 
 

Mr. Ware, Antique Auto Club secretary, said that he wanted to acquaint 
Council members and City staff with their concern about the fees for the 
use of Watson Lake Park for their car show and swap meet. He said the 
show was in its 37th year and they had used the park since 1992 or 1993. 
He said that it cost $200 plus .50 cents for each car parked in 1995.  
 
He said that in 2002 or 2003 the City required them to collect the privilege 
license tax from all of the vendors. He noted that in exchange, the City 
dropped the .50 cent per car fee. He said they were told in 2005 that the 
cost for 2006 would be $1,170 instead of $350. He said that in response 
they put together a mini contract that was presented to Diana Fister, which 



Prescott City Council  
Workshop – July 5, 2011                                                                                      Page 3 
 

they had been operating with on a sliding scale, which topped out at $800. 
He said that 2011 was the final year for the contract.  
 
He said that in April of 2011 he spoke with Debbie Horton regarding the 
fees for all City parks. He noted that in going over fee schedule, 
depending on how it was interpreted, they could jump from $800 to around 
$5,000 a year, which could be a 625% increase. He said that was not 
going to happen. He said they wanted to stay at Watson Lake Park. He 
did not know if they were being charged for the show time or for the set up 
time as well.  
 
A month ago he spoke with Joe Baynes and gave him information. 
Mr. Baynes said that he would get back to him. He noted that they 
normally had 6,000 – 7,000 people that come through the show and a few 
stay until Monday. He said they would like to have an all inclusive 
agreement with the City of Prescott for the use. He said that they would up 
the amount they paid from $800 to $1,600.  

 
Mayor Kuykendall said that normally they did not comment at the 
Workshops but he saw that some of the Council people had questions. 

 
Councilwoman Lopas said that she loved the car show. She said that she 
was not aware of the new fee schedule. She noted that the downtown 
vendors did not want car shows downtown. She said she was more than 
happy to attend whatever meeting was necessary. 

 
Councilwoman Suttles said that she was going to take the other side. She 
would try to talk about why each year the rates went up. She said that the 
show was one of the major events in the City, but there were others that 
lined up. She asked why Mr. Baynes did not get back to Mr. Ware. 
Ms. Horton, Director of  Parks and  Recreation said that  he was  going to 
get back to Mr. Ware by July 8.  

 
Councilwoman Suttles said that she believed there was a process for a 
number of organizations to go through for using the ball parks and lakes.  
She said the City was struggling to keep things going. She said she 
understood the length of time they had been with the City, but did not think 
they could get into a long term contract. Mr. Ware said they would 
consider any agreement that came up.  

 
Councilman Lamerson asked him if he knew what the money that he paid 
to the City went towards. Mr. Ware said he assumed that it was used for 
parks and recreation maintenance. Councilman Lamerson said he might 
get that clarified when he met with Mr. Baynes.  

 



Prescott City Council  
Workshop – July 5, 2011                                                                                      Page 4 
 

Councilman Blair asked Mr. Baynes if the whole park was closed down 
when only the lower level had an event. Mr. Baynes said that the Car 
Show took up most of the park, but the City would still have the boat dock 
for kayak rentals. Councilman Blair said that it should be clarified that the 
park was used for fees to pay for itself. He said that he was trying to 
understand how they would determine to shut down the entire park for a 
four day weekend for $1600, when the City generated over $2000 in 
parking fees the prior weekend.  

 
He said that if there was a Signature Event they could go to the Tourism 
Director and ask for a waiver, based on generation of revenue. He said 
that if they provided a report to show the amount of revenue generated in 
the community from their show, there would be a way to have the fees 
reduced.   

 
Mr. Baynes said that when he met with Mr. Ware in June he suggested 
that they file for a Signature Event. Councilman Blair said that they 
needed to put a value on the event for the community. He asked if the 
parking fees stayed with the City or went with the Auto Club. Mr. Baynes 
said that it would be included in the fee.  
 
Mr. Baynes said that the Signature Event application would be a good tool 
to evaluate each of these types of events. He said that it was more 
equitable if it went through that process. 

 
Mr. Ware said that one of the things they were hoping for was a decision 
by the time they had the event this year so they could announce where the 
event would be next year. 

 
Councilwoman Linn concurred with Councilman Blair. She said that they 
would be setting precedence if they gave him special pricing. She said 
that they should look at how much money they would lose if they closed 
the park. She noted that they had to look at the big picture.  

 
Mayor Kuykendall said that it had been a year of transition. He noted that 
they had been trying to have plans and more standardization. 

 
D. Representatives from The Adult Center re possibility of obtaining a liquor 

license for the facility. 
 

Joan Shay, Executive Director, said that they were tenants in the City 
building. She said that the Board wanted the Council to know that they 
were applying for a Club liquor license. She noted that they had three 
issues: 

 
1) Controlling consumption of alcohol that was happening during rentals. 



Prescott City Council  
Workshop – July 5, 2011                                                                                      Page 5 
 

 
2) There were some neighborhood concerns because events had music 

and partying outside.   
 

3) Having the license, could help them raise some much needed money 
for their budget deficits. 

 
Councilwoman Suttles said that she served as a liaison with the Adult 
Center. She noted that Ms. Shay give a presentation to Council 
concerning the liquor license for the Adult Center.  

 
Councilman Lamerson asked Mr. Kidd if they had identified any particular 
legal ramifications with what was being asked. Mr. Kidd noted that one 
issue that needed to be addressed was that the license was not 
contemplated in the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA). He said that the 
City would probably want to amend the lease agreement and provide for 
any additional liability. 

 
Mayor Kuykendall asked if the license would be for events or would be for 
a daily bar for members only. Ms. Shay said that the current plan now was 
to use it for events and also occasionally have a monthly membership 
mixer or Friday evening membership mixer. She noted that there would be 
evening events. Mayor Kuykendall asked if the drinks would be charged 
individually. Ms. Shay said yes. 

 
Councilman Blair said that he was in favor of the Adult Center buying an 
expensive liquor license to help with their operations as long as the City 
was indemnified. Mr. Kidd said that they would want to make sure that 
there was insurance that covered liquor sales and protected the City as a 
second potential named party. Councilman Blair said that as long as it is 
clearly spelled out, he did not have a problem with it.  

 
Councilwoman Linn said that she had attended a few of their meetings. 
She said that if they applied for a liquor license, there would be public 
input. She said that she had ten calls from people in the community. She 
said that they had to make sure that processes and procedures were 
followed. She said the City was leaving itself open now if the processes 
were not followed. She said the Adult Center would be able to manage the 
alcohol better and cut people off at a certain point.  

 
Councilwoman Suttles said she did not believe the Adult Center had a 99 
year lease with the City. Mayor Kuykendall said that the Master Lease did 
not change, only the portions that the City was funding. The City would 
continue to help fund the center for five years.  

 



Prescott City Council  
Workshop – July 5, 2011                                                                                      Page 6 
 

Mr. Kidd said he thought it was a 99 year lease. He said that there were 
termination provisions. Councilman Lamerson said he understood they 
were trying to generate revenue. He asked, if the Adult Center got a liquor 
license, if the City would be creating a precedent for other tenants if they 
chose to do something similar. Mr. Kidd said that he believed they could 
say no on a case by case basis.  

 
Councilwoman Linn wanted to emphasize indemnification. She said that if 
someone got hurt, they would go after the Adult Center, but they would 
also go after the City.  

 
Mayor Kuykendall said that the next thing would be a formal request to 
Council and then get it to the public.  

       
E. John Sellers re The Crossings subdivision. 
 

Mr. Sellers, Prescott, said that the City was suing all 70 Crossings 
residents for legal fees. He said that there was an Attorney General’s 
investigation going on about Open Meeting Law violations. 
 
Mr. Sellers showed a PowerPoint presentation which addressed: 

 
 The Crossings 

 
 Schematic 

 
 Willow Creek Wash – he noted that Lorraine Drive was always the 

intended means of crossing the wash to get to the Sandretto 
Estates area. 

 
 November 26, 2002, the City Council approved the final residential 

plat for the Crossings. He noted that the low-water crossing was 
100 percent private with no public road.  

 
 November 29, 2003, he said, without the plat going back to City 

Council, a different plat was recorded. He said the low-water 
crossing was still private, but it now had a public road running 
through the wash. 

 
 CITY LAND CODES – any abandonments of dedication of a public 

street was a City Council decision alone and a plat recorded without 
being properly approved was unlawful 

 
 July 27, 2010, City Council decided to ratify that as an 

administrative error.  
 



Prescott City Council  
Workshop – July 5, 2011                                                                                      Page 7 
 

 ADMINISTRATIVE ERROR – he said he knew that it was not an 
administrative error because Councilman Blair explained it in the 
Council meeting and said that it was actually a trade.  

 
 THE VALUE OF THE TRADE – he noted that the trade was done 

secretively.  
 

 HOW DO WE KNOW – there were no public records of the trade. 
 

 HOW WAS IT DONE - they had to close off Lorraine and the 
developer applied to abandon parts of Lorraine Drive in 2002, prior 
to the plat. He said that it was made public by Council in 2007, 
where the developer agreed to pay the City $24,000.00 for the land 
in question. He said an illegal plat was then recorded.  

 
 DISCOVERY 1 – Lorraine Drive land was transferred to Ty Myers 

in the County records, but he never paid the City. He noted that 
$24,000 plus interest was about $36,000. 

 
 DISCOVERY 2 – Ty Myers was forgiven the money, but Mr. Sellers 

did not know who did that. He showed an unsigned Quit Claim 
Deed that was not signed. 

 
 ONE CITY COUNCIL MEMBER TRIED TO HELP – he showed an 

email  received  from  Councilwoman  Lopas  two  days  before  the  
     July 27 City Council meeting. He read the email. 

 
 Mr. Sellers asked the City Council who made something off of the 

deal and who approved the $36,000. 
 

 OPEN MEETING LAWS – he said that they had three options: 
forget all of the facts and make the property owners pay, refer it to 
staff or put it on a future agenda. 
 

Mayor Kuykendall said that they would do one of the three things.  
 

III. PRESENTATION 
 

A. Presentation of Honorary Membership by the Prescott Regulators and 
Their Shady Ladies. 
 
Councilwoman Suttles and Patti Crouse were made honorary members of 
the Prescott Regulators and Shady Ladies by representatives, and each 
were presented a certificate. 

  
 



Prescott City Council  
Workshop – July 5, 2011                                                                                      Page 8 
 
 

B. Presentation by John Moffitt re the Patriot Guard Riders. 
 
 John Moffitt showed a video about the Patriot Guard Riders, talked about 

what they did and said that they were open for volunteers.  
 

He noted that the web site was prescottbikers@hotmail.com and he 
wanted to let the citizens know that they could make checks payable to: 

 
 ALR 79-PGR and sent to: 
 
 ALR Post 79 
 P.O. box 341 
 Yarnell, AZ  85362 
 
 Councilwoman Suttles said that she appreciated what he did. 
  
C. Presentation by Prescott Public Affairs of new economic development/ 

tourism promotional video. 
 

Kim Kapin, Director of Public Affairs, produced and showed the long 
version of the Live + Work + Play video, narrated by Toni Tennille, shot by 
Bruce Dorn and edited by Cadu Medina.  

 
He noted that the City received 4,000 hits on the Visit Prescott site and 
said the video would be a nice tool to help with Tourism and Economic 
Development efforts. 

 
 IV. DISCUSSION 

 
A. Discussion/direction of Charter amendments proposed by the Charter 

Amendment Committee. 
  
 Ms. Burke, City Clerk, noted that the Council directed staff to schedule a 

Charter Amendment Committee meeting, which was held the prior week.  
She said the Committee was made up of Councilwoman Linn and Council 
members Hanna and Lamerson. She noted that they reviewed the other 
Charter amendments that were contemplated last year, but were not 
placed on the ballot due to the limit. 

 
 She said that they reviewed 16 and that they had the recommendations in 

front of them. She noted that she adjusted some of the wording to avoid 
future confusion. She also explained why some of the other changes that 
were made.  

 

mailto:prescottbikers@hotmail.com


Prescott City Council  
Workshop – July 5, 2011                                                                                      Page 9 
 

 Councilwoman Linn said that they should take them one by one and 
address questions for each. 

 
Councilman Blair noted Item I and said that there was a seat available for 
two years and no applications being taken. Ms. Burke said that she did 
hand out a packet ten minutes prior to the meeting. He asked what they 
would do if there was not a qualified person to go on the ballot.   
 
Councilwoman Linn said that was one of the reasons that they were doing 
this. She said that it gave such a limited time for someone to pick up a 
packet and get the signatures. She said if no one turned in a packet, they 
may have to do a write in-for a short term.  
 

 Ms. Burke said it was to clarify that if the resignation did not take place at 
least 30 days before the packets were required for a Primary Election, 
they could be appointed. She noted that this time they had to have a 
General Election because it was past that time and there was nothing 
spelled out. This change would address this situation in the future. 

 
 Councilwoman Suttles asked if a Special Election would cost the City of 

Prescott $70,000. Ms. Burke said that it would be between $60,000 and 
$70,000. She said that it would be closer to $70,000 due to the Charter 
Amendment items, which required a publicity pamphlet. Councilwoman 
Lopas noted that they were going to have the election anyway.  
 
Councilman Lamerson agreed with the City Clerk regarding the language. 
He said that they needed to go to the voters with it. He supported the 
language as amended and presented by the City Clerk. 
 
Ms. Burke said that in the future, if a vacancy occurred earlier than 30 
days before the packets were due for the Primary Election, the Council 
would have the option of making an appointment or calling a Special 
Election, through the Primary Election time period.  
 
Ms. Burke noted that Items 2, 3 and 7 were basically the same issue.  
She noted that there had been discussion by Council regarding how those 
who were appointed by the Council oversaw their departments.  The 
wording was to be consistent among those three departments, which 
stated the Department Head worked for the Council and that the 
Department Head oversaw his staff and budget. 
 
Councilwoman Suttles asked if during budget time, the Council would look 
at each one of the areas as “their” budgets and not set into the full budget. 
Mr. Woodfill said that the departments were still part of the General Fund 
and they did not have any revenue source of their own. Councilman Linn 



Prescott City Council  
Workshop – July 5, 2011                                                                                      Page 10 
 

said the Council was just giving their four employees the right to manage 
their employees and finances.  
 
Ms. Burke noted that Item 5 made the time consistent, but the wording 
made it more flexible to go with whatever the State did. She noted that 
Item 6 had to do with the sale of City property. She said that it was 
suggested that they add “for water supply” to the end of the phrase “lakes 
be retained as Open Space and/or utilized for recreational purposes.” 
 
Ms. Burke said they would bring back actual ballot wording the following 
week to start the process of publicizing requests for pro and con 
statements for each of them and then they would prepare a publicity 
pamphlet for the voters.  

 
B. Discussion/direction of interview procedures for appointment to fill 

unexpired Council term. 
 

Mr. McConnell said there was an adopted policy Resolution No. 3232 that 
set forth how the Council filled vacancies, which he then reviewed. He 
asked if the Council Appointment Committee would select a short list of 
applicants to provide to the Council, as a whole, for their consideration. 
He asked if applying for the position, did everyone get to be selected.  

 
Councilman Lamerson asked if the Council acted as the Board of 
Directors for the City. Mr. Kidd said yes, it was an analogy. Councilman 
Lamerson noted that there was a three member ad hoc committee 
appointed by the Council to review applications for Boards and 
Commissions. He said that they would bring back recommendations. He 
noted that it did not mean that they would be obstructed from the 
opportunity to preview all of the applications. He said that would be the 
direction they should take, rather than publically interview all of the 
applicants. 

 
Mr. Kidd said the resolution did not say to interview all of the applicants. 
He said that it did not set up the selection process.  

 
Mayor Kuykendall asked if Resolution 3232 gave them the authority to 
continue a process they had been using for board appointments.           
Mr. Kidd suggested that they do a vote to see if the Council desired to do 
that.  Mayor Kuykendall asked if the committee could hold their interviews 
in Executive Session. Mr. Kidd said that once the committee was 
appointed they would have to observe Open Meeting Law. He said the 
resolution would have to be a public process.  

 
Councilwoman Lopas said that in reading the adopted policy, it said, “the 
copies of all applications shall be submitted to the Mayor and each 



Prescott City Council  
Workshop – July 5, 2011                                                                                      Page 11 
 

individual Council member for his/her review and consideration.” She said 
that she was a little nervous about a committee selection. She noted that 
it then read, “the entire Council will publicly interview selected applicants.” 
She said that she understood it that the Council would choose their slate 
of applicants and then interview those people.  
 
Mr. Kidd said there was not anything in preventing a Council member from 
requesting that another name be added to the list for interviews.  

 
Mayor Kuykendall said when they selected people for a board they had a 
list of those that had submitted applications. He said they did not go to the 
entire Council on that procedure. He said that they depended on the 
committee. He said the current situation should stand that same test. 
Councilwoman Lopas said that was not what the policy said. 
 
Mr. Kidd said the policy said there was a selection process. He read it that 
Council would review selected candidates.  

  
Councilman Blair said there should be a screening process for candidates 
to be taken to Council. He said it was all tied to Open Meeting Law and 
anyone could go to the screening process.  

 
Councilwoman Suttles said she agreed with Councilman Blair to a point. 
She said if Councilwoman Lopas felt that she wanted to be a part of it, 
she should submit people she liked to the Selection Committee. 
Councilman Blair said that they could all pick six and then the Selection 
Committee should narrow it down to four and the Council would make a 
final decision. 

 
Councilwoman Suttles asked if Councilwoman Linn would be a part of the 
selection. Councilwoman Linn said that she would love to be a part of it. 
Councilman Blair said that everyone should look at the list and turn in their 
six picks to Ms. Burke by that Friday. Mayor Kuykendall said he had no 
problem with the current committee.  

 
Councilman Lamerson said that there was already a process set up for 
that type of thing. He does not want to set up an opportunity for an Open 
Meeting Law violation. He thinks that they should rely on the current 
committee.  

 
Councilman Suttles said she would like the committee to look at the 
applications on Friday and be ready to vote on Tuesday or whenever they 
chose to do that. 

 
Councilman Blair said they should use the Council Selection Committee to 
present four names to the Council. If a Council member had someone 



Prescott City Council  
Workshop – July 5, 2011                                                                                      Page 12 
 

who they would like to have interviewed, they could be added to the list. 
Councilwoman Linn agreed.  

 
Mr. Kidd suggested that they vote on the selection process at a voting 
session.  

 
Ms. Burke asked when they would make the appointments. Mayor 
Kuykendall said that it had to be within 31 days of July 14th.  

 
V. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to be discussed, the Prescott City Council 
Workshop of July 5, 2011, adjourned at 5:00 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       MARLIN D. KUYKENDALL, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Prescott City Council 


Workshop – July 5, 2011
                                                                                      Page 8









PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL    








WORKSHOP








TUESDAY, JULY 5, 2011








PRESCOTT, ARIZONA


MINUTES OF THE PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP held on July 5, 2011, in the CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS located at 201 SOUTH CORTEZ STREET, Prescott, Arizona

( 
CALL TO ORDER



Mayor Kuykendall called the Workshop to order at 3:01 p.m. 


(
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Councilman Lamerson

Councilman Lamerson led the Council and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

(
INVOCATION
Church of the Nazarene


None was given.

( 
ROLL CALL:






Present:





Absent:

Mayor Kuykendall




Councilman Hanna*

Councilman Blair




Councilwoman Linn**

Councilman Hanna





Councilman Lamerson



Councilwoman Lopas


Councilwoman Suttles


* excused



** available via phone

I.
RECOGNITIONS


A. Introduction of new businesses

Dyan Jones from the Prescott Chamber of Commerce introduced the following businesses, who each briefly told of their business:


(Accurate Building Maintenance 



(Yavapai Deals

II.
PUBLIC COMMENTS


A. Representative of Prescott Creeks re Granite Creek Cleanup.

Ann-Marie Benz, Prescott Creeks, gave a recap of the 2011 Cleanup.  She noted that the cleanup had been going on for more than 20 years and Prescott Creeks had been running it for the past 5 years. 

She thanked the City of Prescott for their help and noted that 508 people came out to help from the community to pick up 10 tons of trash from the creeks, lakes and along the trails.  

She noted that in five years, 1,715 people had retrieved 27.37 tons of trash. She said that the City recycled 100 plus pounds of metal and pulled out tires. Three tons of garbage was up-cycled into art.

She said that they currently had a CALL FOR ARTISTS to use some of the trash and bring it back as art pieces for an art show and auction on September 18, 2011 from 4:00 – 7:00 p.m. at Granite Dells Resort. The event cost would be $35 and would help support the Granite Creek Cleanup. She said that there would be food, drinks and music. 

She noted that the annual Granite Creek Cleanup event for next year would be April 21, 2012, 9:00 a.m. at Granite Creek Park. 


B. Carol Friedman re Symphony Guild Update.


Ms. Friedman was not present


C. James Ware re use of Watson Lake Park by the Prescott Antique Auto Club.


Mr. Ware, Antique Auto Club secretary, said that he wanted to acquaint Council members and City staff with their concern about the fees for the use of Watson Lake Park for their car show and swap meet. He said the show was in its 37th year and they had used the park since 1992 or 1993. He said that it cost $200 plus .50 cents for each car parked in 1995. 

He said that in 2002 or 2003 the City required them to collect the privilege license tax from all of the vendors. He noted that in exchange, the City dropped the .50 cent per car fee. He said they were told in 2005 that the cost for 2006 would be $1,170 instead of $350. He said that in response they put together a mini contract that was presented to Diana Fister, which they had been operating with on a sliding scale, which topped out at $800. He said that 2011 was the final year for the contract. 

He said that in April of 2011 he spoke with Debbie Horton regarding the fees for all City parks. He noted that in going over fee schedule, depending on how it was interpreted, they could jump from $800 to around $5,000 a year, which could be a 625% increase. He said that was not going to happen. He said they wanted to stay at Watson Lake Park. He did not know if they were being charged for the show time or for the set up time as well. 

A month ago he spoke with Joe Baynes and gave him information. Mr. Baynes said that he would get back to him. He noted that they normally had 6,000 – 7,000 people that come through the show and a few stay until Monday. He said they would like to have an all inclusive agreement with the City of Prescott for the use. He said that they would up the amount they paid from $800 to $1,600. 

Mayor Kuykendall said that normally they did not comment at the Workshops but he saw that some of the Council people had questions.

Councilwoman Lopas said that she loved the car show. She said that she was not aware of the new fee schedule. She noted that the downtown vendors did not want car shows downtown. She said she was more than happy to attend whatever meeting was necessary.


Councilwoman Suttles said that she was going to take the other side. She would try to talk about why each year the rates went up. She said that the show was one of the major events in the City, but there were others that lined up. She asked why Mr. Baynes did not get back to Mr. Ware. Ms. Horton, Director of  Parks and  Recreation said that  he was  going to get back to Mr. Ware by July 8. 

Councilwoman Suttles said that she believed there was a process for a number of organizations to go through for using the ball parks and lakes.  She said the City was struggling to keep things going. She said she understood the length of time they had been with the City, but did not think they could get into a long term contract. Mr. Ware said they would consider any agreement that came up. 

Councilman Lamerson asked him if he knew what the money that he paid to the City went towards. Mr. Ware said he assumed that it was used for parks and recreation maintenance. Councilman Lamerson said he might get that clarified when he met with Mr. Baynes. 

Councilman Blair asked Mr. Baynes if the whole park was closed down when only the lower level had an event. Mr. Baynes said that the Car Show took up most of the park, but the City would still have the boat dock for kayak rentals. Councilman Blair said that it should be clarified that the park was used for fees to pay for itself. He said that he was trying to understand how they would determine to shut down the entire park for a four day weekend for $1600, when the City generated over $2000 in parking fees the prior weekend. 

He said that if there was a Signature Event they could go to the Tourism Director and ask for a waiver, based on generation of revenue. He said that if they provided a report to show the amount of revenue generated in the community from their show, there would be a way to have the fees reduced.  


Mr. Baynes said that when he met with Mr. Ware in June he suggested that they file for a Signature Event. Councilman Blair said that they needed to put a value on the event for the community. He asked if the parking fees stayed with the City or went with the Auto Club. Mr. Baynes said that it would be included in the fee. 

Mr. Baynes said that the Signature Event application would be a good tool to evaluate each of these types of events. He said that it was more equitable if it went through that process.


Mr. Ware said that one of the things they were hoping for was a decision by the time they had the event this year so they could announce where the event would be next year.


Councilwoman Linn concurred with Councilman Blair. She said that they would be setting precedence if they gave him special pricing. She said that they should look at how much money they would lose if they closed the park. She noted that they had to look at the big picture. 


Mayor Kuykendall said that it had been a year of transition. He noted that they had been trying to have plans and more standardization.


D. Representatives from The Adult Center re possibility of obtaining a liquor license for the facility.


Joan Shay, Executive Director, said that they were tenants in the City building. She said that the Board wanted the Council to know that they were applying for a Club liquor license. She noted that they had three issues:

1) Controlling consumption of alcohol that was happening during rentals.

2) There were some neighborhood concerns because events had music and partying outside.  

3) Having the license, could help them raise some much needed money for their budget deficits.


Councilwoman Suttles said that she served as a liaison with the Adult Center. She noted that Ms. Shay give a presentation to Council concerning the liquor license for the Adult Center. 


Councilman Lamerson asked Mr. Kidd if they had identified any particular legal ramifications with what was being asked. Mr. Kidd noted that one issue that needed to be addressed was that the license was not contemplated in the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA). He said that the City would probably want to amend the lease agreement and provide for any additional liability.


Mayor Kuykendall asked if the license would be for events or would be for a daily bar for members only. Ms. Shay said that the current plan now was to use it for events and also occasionally have a monthly membership mixer or Friday evening membership mixer. She noted that there would be evening events. Mayor Kuykendall asked if the drinks would be charged individually. Ms. Shay said yes.

Councilman Blair said that he was in favor of the Adult Center buying an expensive liquor license to help with their operations as long as the City was indemnified. Mr. Kidd said that they would want to make sure that there was insurance that covered liquor sales and protected the City as a second potential named party. Councilman Blair said that as long as it is clearly spelled out, he did not have a problem with it. 

Councilwoman Linn said that she had attended a few of their meetings. She said that if they applied for a liquor license, there would be public input. She said that she had ten calls from people in the community. She said that they had to make sure that processes and procedures were followed. She said the City was leaving itself open now if the processes were not followed. She said the Adult Center would be able to manage the alcohol better and cut people off at a certain point. 

Councilwoman Suttles said she did not believe the Adult Center had a 99 year lease with the City. Mayor Kuykendall said that the Master Lease did not change, only the portions that the City was funding. The City would continue to help fund the center for five years. 

Mr. Kidd said he thought it was a 99 year lease. He said that there were termination provisions. Councilman Lamerson said he understood they were trying to generate revenue. He asked, if the Adult Center got a liquor license, if the City would be creating a precedent for other tenants if they chose to do something similar. Mr. Kidd said that he believed they could say no on a case by case basis. 


Councilwoman Linn wanted to emphasize indemnification. She said that if someone got hurt, they would go after the Adult Center, but they would also go after the City. 

Mayor Kuykendall said that the next thing would be a formal request to Council and then get it to the public. 


E. John Sellers re The Crossings subdivision.


Mr. Sellers, Prescott, said that the City was suing all 70 Crossings residents for legal fees. He said that there was an Attorney General’s investigation going on about Open Meeting Law violations.

Mr. Sellers showed a PowerPoint presentation which addressed:


· The Crossings


· Schematic


· Willow Creek Wash – he noted that Lorraine Drive was always the intended means of crossing the wash to get to the Sandretto Estates area.

· November 26, 2002, the City Council approved the final residential plat for the Crossings. He noted that the low-water crossing was 100 percent private with no public road. 

· November 29, 2003, he said, without the plat going back to City Council, a different plat was recorded. He said the low-water crossing was still private, but it now had a public road running through the wash.

· CITY LAND CODES – any abandonments of dedication of a public street was a City Council decision alone and a plat recorded without being properly approved was unlawful

· July 27, 2010, City Council decided to ratify that as an administrative error. 

· ADMINISTRATIVE ERROR – he said he knew that it was not an administrative error because Councilman Blair explained it in the Council meeting and said that it was actually a trade. 

· THE VALUE OF THE TRADE – he noted that the trade was done secretively. 

· HOW DO WE KNOW – there were no public records of the trade.

· HOW WAS IT DONE - they had to close off Lorraine and the developer applied to abandon parts of Lorraine Drive in 2002, prior to the plat. He said that it was made public by Council in 2007, where the developer agreed to pay the City $24,000.00 for the land in question. He said an illegal plat was then recorded. 

· DISCOVERY 1 – Lorraine Drive land was transferred to Ty Myers in the County records, but he never paid the City. He noted that $24,000 plus interest was about $36,000.

· DISCOVERY 2 – Ty Myers was forgiven the money, but Mr. Sellers did not know who did that. He showed an unsigned Quit Claim Deed that was not signed.

· ONE CITY COUNCIL MEMBER TRIED TO HELP – he showed an email  received  from  Councilwoman  Lopas  two  days  before  the 

     July 27 City Council meeting. He read the email.

· Mr. Sellers asked the City Council who made something off of the deal and who approved the $36,000.


· OPEN MEETING LAWS – he said that they had three options: forget all of the facts and make the property owners pay, refer it to staff or put it on a future agenda.

Mayor Kuykendall said that they would do one of the three things. 

III.
PRESENTATION


A. Presentation of Honorary Membership by the Prescott Regulators and Their Shady Ladies.

Councilwoman Suttles and Patti Crouse were made honorary members of the Prescott Regulators and Shady Ladies by representatives, and each were presented a certificate.

B.
Presentation by John Moffitt re the Patriot Guard Riders.



John Moffitt showed a video about the Patriot Guard Riders, talked about what they did and said that they were open for volunteers. 

He noted that the web site was prescottbikers@hotmail.com and he wanted to let the citizens know that they could make checks payable to:


ALR 79-PGR and sent to:


ALR Post 79



P.O. box 341



Yarnell, AZ  85362



Councilwoman Suttles said that she appreciated what he did.


C.
Presentation by Prescott Public Affairs of new economic development/ tourism promotional video.


Kim Kapin, Director of Public Affairs, produced and showed the long version of the Live + Work + Play video, narrated by Toni Tennille, shot by Bruce Dorn and edited by Cadu Medina. 


He noted that the City received 4,000 hits on the Visit Prescott site and said the video would be a nice tool to help with Tourism and Economic Development efforts.

 IV.
DISCUSSION


A.
Discussion/direction of Charter amendments proposed by the Charter Amendment Committee.


Ms. Burke, City Clerk, noted that the Council directed staff to schedule a Charter Amendment Committee meeting, which was held the prior week.  She said the Committee was made up of Councilwoman Linn and Council members Hanna and Lamerson. She noted that they reviewed the other Charter amendments that were contemplated last year, but were not placed on the ballot due to the limit.



She said that they reviewed 16 and that they had the recommendations in front of them. She noted that she adjusted some of the wording to avoid future confusion. She also explained why some of the other changes that were made. 


Councilwoman Linn said that they should take them one by one and address questions for each.


Councilman Blair noted Item I and said that there was a seat available for two years and no applications being taken. Ms. Burke said that she did hand out a packet ten minutes prior to the meeting. He asked what they would do if there was not a qualified person to go on the ballot.  


Councilwoman Linn said that was one of the reasons that they were doing this. She said that it gave such a limited time for someone to pick up a packet and get the signatures. She said if no one turned in a packet, they may have to do a write in-for a short term. 


Ms. Burke said it was to clarify that if the resignation did not take place at least 30 days before the packets were required for a Primary Election, they could be appointed. She noted that this time they had to have a General Election because it was past that time and there was nothing spelled out. This change would address this situation in the future.


Councilwoman Suttles asked if a Special Election would cost the City of Prescott $70,000. Ms. Burke said that it would be between $60,000 and $70,000. She said that it would be closer to $70,000 due to the Charter Amendment items, which required a publicity pamphlet. Councilwoman Lopas noted that they were going to have the election anyway. 


Councilman Lamerson agreed with the City Clerk regarding the language. He said that they needed to go to the voters with it. He supported the language as amended and presented by the City Clerk.


Ms. Burke said that in the future, if a vacancy occurred earlier than 30 days before the packets were due for the Primary Election, the Council would have the option of making an appointment or calling a Special Election, through the Primary Election time period. 


Ms. Burke noted that Items 2, 3 and 7 were basically the same issue.  She noted that there had been discussion by Council regarding how those who were appointed by the Council oversaw their departments.  The wording was to be consistent among those three departments, which stated the Department Head worked for the Council and that the Department Head oversaw his staff and budget.

Councilwoman Suttles asked if during budget time, the Council would look at each one of the areas as “their” budgets and not set into the full budget. Mr. Woodfill said that the departments were still part of the General Fund and they did not have any revenue source of their own. Councilman Linn said the Council was just giving their four employees the right to manage their employees and finances. 


Ms. Burke noted that Item 5 made the time consistent, but the wording made it more flexible to go with whatever the State did. She noted that Item 6 had to do with the sale of City property. She said that it was suggested that they add “for water supply” to the end of the phrase “lakes be retained as Open Space and/or utilized for recreational purposes.”

Ms. Burke said they would bring back actual ballot wording the following week to start the process of publicizing requests for pro and con statements for each of them and then they would prepare a publicity pamphlet for the voters. 

B.
Discussion/direction of interview procedures for appointment to fill unexpired Council term.

Mr. McConnell said there was an adopted policy Resolution No. 3232 that set forth how the Council filled vacancies, which he then reviewed. He asked if the Council Appointment Committee would select a short list of applicants to provide to the Council, as a whole, for their consideration. He asked if applying for the position, did everyone get to be selected. 

Councilman Lamerson asked if the Council acted as the Board of Directors for the City. Mr. Kidd said yes, it was an analogy. Councilman Lamerson noted that there was a three member ad hoc committee appointed by the Council to review applications for Boards and Commissions. He said that they would bring back recommendations. He noted that it did not mean that they would be obstructed from the opportunity to preview all of the applications. He said that would be the direction they should take, rather than publically interview all of the applicants.

Mr. Kidd said the resolution did not say to interview all of the applicants. He said that it did not set up the selection process. 

Mayor Kuykendall asked if Resolution 3232 gave them the authority to continue a process they had been using for board appointments.           Mr. Kidd suggested that they do a vote to see if the Council desired to do that.  Mayor Kuykendall asked if the committee could hold their interviews in Executive Session. Mr. Kidd said that once the committee was appointed they would have to observe Open Meeting Law. He said the resolution would have to be a public process. 

Councilwoman Lopas said that in reading the adopted policy, it said, “the copies of all applications shall be submitted to the Mayor and each individual Council member for his/her review and consideration.” She said that she was a little nervous about a committee selection. She noted that it then read, “the entire Council will publicly interview selected applicants.” She said that she understood it that the Council would choose their slate of applicants and then interview those people. 

Mr. Kidd said there was not anything in preventing a Council member from requesting that another name be added to the list for interviews. 

Mayor Kuykendall said when they selected people for a board they had a list of those that had submitted applications. He said they did not go to the entire Council on that procedure. He said that they depended on the committee. He said the current situation should stand that same test. Councilwoman Lopas said that was not what the policy said.

Mr. Kidd said the policy said there was a selection process. He read it that Council would review selected candidates. 

Councilman Blair said there should be a screening process for candidates to be taken to Council. He said it was all tied to Open Meeting Law and anyone could go to the screening process. 


Councilwoman Suttles said she agreed with Councilman Blair to a point. She said if Councilwoman Lopas felt that she wanted to be a part of it, she should submit people she liked to the Selection Committee. Councilman Blair said that they could all pick six and then the Selection Committee should narrow it down to four and the Council would make a final decision.

Councilwoman Suttles asked if Councilwoman Linn would be a part of the selection. Councilwoman Linn said that she would love to be a part of it. Councilman Blair said that everyone should look at the list and turn in their six picks to Ms. Burke by that Friday. Mayor Kuykendall said he had no problem with the current committee. 

Councilman Lamerson said that there was already a process set up for that type of thing. He does not want to set up an opportunity for an Open Meeting Law violation. He thinks that they should rely on the current committee. 

Councilman Suttles said she would like the committee to look at the applications on Friday and be ready to vote on Tuesday or whenever they chose to do that.

Councilman Blair said they should use the Council Selection Committee to present four names to the Council. If a Council member had someone who they would like to have interviewed, they could be added to the list. Councilwoman Linn agreed. 

Mr. Kidd suggested that they vote on the selection process at a voting session. 


Ms. Burke asked when they would make the appointments. Mayor Kuykendall said that it had to be within 31 days of July 14th. 

V.
ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to be discussed, the Prescott City Council Workshop of July 5, 2011, adjourned at 5:00 p.m.








________________________________









MARLIN D. KUYKENDALL, Mayor


ATTEST:


______________________________


ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk













